
LANCASTER COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Minutes

November 19, 2009

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Lancaster County Planning Commission 
was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the General District Courtroom of the Lancaster 
County Courthouse, Lancaster, Virginia.

Present were David Jones, Chairman, Tara Booth, Steve Sorensen, Robert Smart, 
Ty Brent and David Chupp.

Also present were Butch Jenkins, Board of Supervisors Representative, Don Gill, 
Planning/Land Use Director, Audrey Thomasson, Rappahannock Record, Larry Turner, 
Richard Rau, Charles Costello and others.                            

Mr. Jones asked if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes of the 
October 15, 2009 regular meeting.

Mr. Jones moved to approve the October 15, 2009 minutes as submitted. VOTE: 
6-0.

Mr. Jones stated that he wanted to congratulate Mr. Jenkins on his re-election to 
the District One Board of Supervisors seat.

PUBLIC HEARING #1

AMEND ARTICLE 9 OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO REVISE 
PERMITTED USES AND THE STATEMENT OF INTENT IN THE M-1, 

INDUSTRIAL LIMITED ZONING DISTRICT

Mr. Jones asked Mr. Gill to present the issue.

Mr. Gill stated that the issue was to amend Article 9 of the Zoning Ordinance to 
revise the permitted uses and statement of intent in the M-1, Industrial Limited District. 
He said that the discussion at previous months’ Planning Commission meetings 
recommended a few changes to the M-1, Industrial Limited District. He stated that the 
changes included revising the statement of intent to make it less confusing, revising the 
outdated language in several permitted uses and creating a “catch-all” permitted use with 
a special exception to include types of manufacturing or similar activities not specifically 
mentioned.

1



Mr. Gill stated that the issue had been advertised as required by law and to date, 
there had been no input from the public.

Mr. Jones asked if anyone on the Planning Commission had any questions or 
comments. There was no comment.

Mr. Jones opened the floor for public comment. There was no public comment.

Mr. Smart moved to forward the revised permitted uses and statement of intent in 
the M-1, Industrial Limited District to the Board of Supervisors recommending approval. 
VOTE: 6-0.

PUBLIC HEARING #2

APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION 
FROM A-2, AGRICULTURAL, GENERAL TO C-1, COMMERCIAL – MARY 

NIVIN BLUNDON STOVER (OWNER) AND TURNER AND ASSOCIATES 
REALTY, INC. (PROPOSED BUYER)

Mr. Jones asked Mr. Gill to present the issue.

Mr. Gill stated that the issue was an application for change of Zoning District 
Classification from A-2, Agricultural, General to C-1, Commercial by Mary Nivin 
Blundon Stover (owner) and Turner and Associates Realty, Inc. (proposed buyer) for a 
0.76-acre parcel described as a portion of Tax Map #14-40. He stated that this parcel is 
located in the village of Lively, off VSH 3 (Mary Ball Road), behind the Horsley Real 
Estate Office.

Mr. Gill stated that the proposed buyer, Turner and Associates Realty, wishes to 
locate a Dollar General Store within the village of Lively and has contracted to purchase 
the Horsley Real Estate office property (Tax Map #14A-3-1 zoned C-1 Commercial). He 
said that there is not enough acreage on the Horsley parcel to accommodate the Dollar 
General Store and Mr. Turner approached Ms. Stover about buying additional land from 
her adjacent parcel (Tax Map #14-40 zoned A-2 Agricultural General) to merge with the 
Horsley property to create a parcel large enough to accommodate the Dollar General 
Store.

Mr. Gill said that an agreement has been reached and a 0.76-acre parcel has been 
subdivided from Ms. Stover’s larger parcel (Tax Map #14-40), but the problem is that the 
0.76-acre parcel is zoned A-2 and the Horsley property is zoned C-1. He further stated 
that two parcels with different zoning categories could not be merged, as it would create a 
single non-conforming parcel with split zoning.  As a result, Ms. Stover and Mr. Turner 
seek to rezone the 0.76-acre parcel to C-1 Commercial so that it will have the same 

2



zoning as the Horsley property. Mr. Gill said that the two parcels could then be merged to 
create a parcel large enough for the Dollar General Store.

Mr. Gill stated that staff views the rezoning request as reasonable and appropriate 
because the 0.76-acre parcel proposed for rezoning is located within the village of Lively, 
is adjacent to many C-1 properties and is also part of the Rural Village Overlay District 
which allows retail sales.  He said that this rezoning would also conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan which encourages the revitalization of traditional village areas.  Mr. 
Gill said that the adjoining property owners have been notified and advertising conducted 
as required by law and to date, there has been no input from the public.

Mr. Smart stated that he liked the fact that this was not spot zoning and it will be 
with other C-1 properties. He further stated that it follows the Comprehensive Plan by 
keeping development within the villages and it will create a few new jobs.

Mr. Jones opened the floor to public input.

Mr. Larry Turner of Turner and Associates Realty, Inc, the proposed buyer, 
introduced himself and stated that he could answer any questions.

Mr. Jones stated that he had no issues with the application.

Mr. Jones closed the floor to public input.

Mr. Jones made a motion to forward the application for change of Zoning District 
Classification from A-2, Agricultural, General to C-1, Commercial by Mary Nivin 
Blundon Stover (owner) and Turner and Associates Realty, Inc. (proposed buyer) for a 
0.76-acre parcel described as a portion of Tax Map #14-40 to the Board of Supervisors 
recommending approval. VOTE: 6-0.

Mr. Gill stated that he would like to get the survey plats back so that he could 
have them for the Board of Supervisors meeting.

Mr. Brent asked Mr. Turner when the construction of the building would begin.

Mr. Turner stated that it typically takes about sixty days to generate the site plan 
and he anticipated breaking ground sometime in March. Mr. Turner further stated that 
they had opened two stores in Northumberland County this year.

Mr. Jenkins stated that the building that needs to be demolished in order to build 
the new store was a historical building. It was the law office of former state senator, 
Robert O. Norris, Jr.  Mr. Jenkins stated that it would be good for the building to be 
moved to another site to preserve its historical value.

Mr. Turner stated that he would cooperate with that request.

3



OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Gill stated that there would be no Planning Commission meeting for the 
month of December.

Mr. Jones stated that he wanted to thank the public and the members of the 
Planning Commission for their help during the year.

ADJOURNMENT

The November 19, 2009 regular meeting of the Lancaster County Planning 
Commission was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

4


	Minutes
	November 19, 2009
	OTHER BUSINESS

